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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Due to its lack of applied decoration,its abstract geometric forms, and
its fine brickwork, the Woman's National Democratic Club at 1526 New Hampshirﬁ
Avenue has a restrained dignity not often found in mansions built in Wash-
ington in the 1890's., The bold contrast of the angular brick walls and the
free flowing convex curves of the high roofs help to make this irregularly
shaped structure a focal point of its street. This house, the successful
solution of the problem of building on a difficult triangular lot, is pro-
bably the physical product of an architectural ideology similar to that
which produced the '"Shingle style'" and the English Arts and Crafts Movement.
It shares with these movements a turning away from derivative, ornate Beaux
Arts styles to a less academically derivative style which exhibits a respect
for materials, an elimination of non-essential decorative details, and an
open plan. This building designed by Harvey L. Page in 1892 is not completely
free of derivative details but is a definite step in the direction of a non-
derivative style which relies on form and materials for effect rather than on
ornamentation.

Located just north of Dupont Circle on a corner triangular lot bounded by
New Hampshire Avenue, a diagonal street, on the east and Q Street on the
north, 1526 New Hampshire Avenue is a 2-1/2-story, masonry freestanding
building facing streets of predominately late 19th and early 20th century, 3-
story, masonry attached houses., On the north and east the building is sepa-
rated from the sidewalk by an ivy covered yard., At the south is a garden en-
closed by a brick wall erected in 1972, Attached at the west is a two-story
wing,with flat roof. The wing,a frankly contemporary design, which is sympa-
thetically scaled in relation to the older building, was built in 1967,
Designed by Nicholas Satterlee this wing has rough concrete walls and 2-
story semicircular projections. A highrise building is west of the wing on
Q Street. To the south on New Hampshire Avenue there is a 4-story, free-
standing block and the Dupont Circle Hotel, the highrise which replaced the
Leiter Mansion.

The house's irregular trapezoidal mass with parallel north and south
sides has three projecting 2-story polygonal bays or towers, two oriels, and
a number of hipped dormers. Although projections have their own roofs, the
roofs are unified by the continuous, overhanging eaves and the convex curves
which link the roofs to form one undulating, rhythmic mass. This asymmetri-
cal building is organized into masses rather than into bays,

The north (Q Street) facade has a slightly projecting pavilion with its
own hipped roof. From the pavilion projects a three-sided, two-story bay
also with a pyramidal roof. East of the pavilion the main roof is broken
near the joining of it and the pyramidal roof of the two-story seven-sided
corner tower by a tall chimney whose wider side faces the street., West of
the pavilion the ridzepole of the main roof drops to a lower level suggesting
that the western section serves less important functions. The western sec~
tion of the roof is broken by two dormers separated by a chimney with its
narrow side facing the street., At the west a two-story connector which is
predominantly glass on the second story links the house with the 1967, two-~
story wing. The wing with its rough concrete walls and semicircular bays is
taller and more massive in appearance than the connector,

CONDITION

(Continued on Form 10-300a)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICA.NCE . ’ R .
The Joint Committee on Landmarks has designated the Woman's National

Democratic Club a Category II landmark of importance which contributes signi-
ficantly to the cultural heritage and visual beauty of the District of
Columbia., The Woman's National Democratic Club is a significant example of

h building of the 1890's which, due to the elimination of most decorative
Hetails and due to the frank handling of materials has kinship with the Eng-
1ish Arts and Crafts Movement and with American ”ghingle Style' architecture.
This building at 1526 New Hampshire Avenue relies for its considerable vis-
al impact on its exceptionally fine brickwork and on its irregular geometric
lnass capped by broad expanses of hipped roofs with convex slopes.

Little is known about the building's architect, Harvey.L. Page (1859-1934),
but the restraint and fine craftsmanship of this building suggest that he
was in sympathy with the more advanced architectural thought of. his day
which favored integrity of materials, simplicity of form, and free flowing
plans rather than derivative Beaux Arts Classicism. Although only the in-
side of the second story porch of the southwest facade has shingle cladding,
1526 New Hampshire Avenue has the abstract dignity, free-flowing plan,
hovering roof, and some of the emphasis on flat, rarely interrupted surfaces
nssociated with the Shingle Style. In its abstraction and use of materials,
it also has an affinity with the architecture of the Arts and Crafts Move-
ment., It is interesting to note that Page left Washington for Chicago in
1897. One can only speculate that he was looking for a more receptive
rlimate, Chicago at the end of the 19th century was the home of the Chicago
Arts and Crafts Society and of the Chicago School while Washington was over-
come by Beaux Arts Classicism,

The house has had a number of distinguished occupants including Walter D.
Wilcox, John F. Dryden, and John C. Weeks. Since 1927 as the home of the
Woman's National Democratic Club, an organization with the aim of educating
women in political philosophy, it has been the site of talks by many leading
political figures.

In 1891 Sarah Adams Whittemore purchased the triangular southeast corner
lot at New Hampshire Avenue and Q Street from William Walter Phelps. Mrs,
Whittémore was the daughter of the Reverand Henry Adams,a descendant of
IPresident John Adams. After her first husband, Sextus Newell Wilcox, died,
she married William C. Whittemore.

Between 1892 and 1894 Mrs. Whittemore built her home at 1526 New Hampshire
Avenue. The house was designed by Page, a Washington architect who had worked

in the office of J.L. Smithmeyer before opening his own office. Page de-
signed a number of large houses and clubhouses in Washington., The builder

Was Charles Albion Langley, the building contractor for a number of large AAJ
(Continued on Form 10-300a)
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7. Description - Woman's National Democratic Club

The southeast (main, New Hampshire Avenue) facade is an asymmetrically
balanced composition, The east polygonal corner tower due to its higher roof
and location at the street corner is more prominent than the southeast poly~-
gonal corner tower. However an imbalance is not created as the entrance oc-
cupies the southern half of the facade between the towers and adds importance
to the southeast section of the facade. The segmentally arched recessed en-
trance is flanked by narrow windows and approached by a flight of brownstone
steps. Around the stoop there is a low, brick wall with brownstone cap. Above
the entrance there is a semicircular, copper covered oriel with its own conical
roof., Between the entrance and the east tower is a grouping of three windows
on the first story and two windows on the second story. Breaking the roof
above them is a wide, low, hipped dormer with three openings.

The view of the south facade from the street is obscured by a high brick
wall, West of the southeast corner tower is a projecting south wing which has
a porch over the enclosed first story. The first-story openings were lengthen-~
ed in 1967. A metal railing is found above the corbel cornice of the lst story}
but three copper clad piers several feet north of the railing support the high
hipped roof which protects most of this porch. This roof in turn is broken by
a dormer, The rear wall of the porch is covered with shingles. West of the
porch roof a double dormer breaks the main roof. . The western section of the
roof with lower ridgepole is broken by the pyramidal roof of a copper covered,
polygonal oriel on the second-story. A tall, massive chimmey which is tri-
angular in plan acts as an anchor at the southwest. Below the oriel on the
first story a one-story connector links the house with the two-~story, semi-
circular projection of the 1967 additionm.

The handling of materials on the exterior of the building is an outstanding
feature, The walls are laid in an unusual, orange-brown brick, There is a
judicious use of brownstone trim. The second story oriels, the posts of the
second story porch at the south, and the gutter outlining the eaves of the roof
are copper or copper covered and are now green in color., The roof is covered
with dark gray slate. Window trim is painted black. The double-hung windows
have only small panes of leaded glass or have leaded glass at the top and plate
glass below. Some basement openings have metal grates.

The flat walls are a major design characteristic. They form the angular
towers and bay. They are interrupted by copper covered oriels and are punctua-
ted by voidlike openings. There is no applied decoration but variety comes
from subtle variation in the brickwork, The walls, laid with very small mortar
joints, are all long narrow stretchers except where rows of headers are used to
differentiate sections of the wall, For instance on the Q Street and New
Hampshire Avenue facades there is a band of 5 rows of headers at the level of
the first story window sill, and between the first and second story windows are
three bands (3, 3, and 4 rows of headers). On the south facade there is a band
of five rows of headers at the watertable level. Between the first and second
story windows of the corner towers and of the Q Street bay are rectangular
panels with bricks laid to form a diamond pattern. Most openings are flat or
segmentally arched and have large brick jack arches. Near the west corner of
the Q Street facade at the basement level is a small semicircular arched open-

g with a2 hapndsome brick arch. (Continued on Form 10-300a, page.2)
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Windows have brownstone sills and basement windows have brownstone jack
arches, There is a brownstone band at the ground level and at the first story
window sill level on the corner towers and on the Q Street bay. (The Q Street
bay also has a brick band as its first story sill level is higher than the sill
level elsewhere on the north facade.)

The most significant feature of the interior are the entrance and stair
hall . On the east side of the entrance hall is the stair hall and around
these halls on the first floor are grouped the principal rooms. The main rooms
on the first floor open on the halls and on to each other through wide doors.
The rooms have unusual shapes due to the towers, bay, and oriels and the ir-
regular shape of the building., From the south side of the stair hall rises an
elaborate stairway arranged in several flights about an open well, This stair
links the two principal floors., The third floor can be reached by a narrow
stair off the second floor central hall or by narrow service stairs at the
west.

Unlike the exterior which largely retains its 1890's appearance the interior
has undergone some alteration. In 1967 the new dining room in the wing was ex-
tended into the older wing incorporating all the area on the first story under
the section of the roof with a lower ridgepole. The dark panelling of the en-
trance and stair halls has been painted. The handsome plaster ceiling in the
northeast parlor is gone although the northwest parlor and the oval hall on the
second floor retain their plaster decoration. Many decorative features remain
including large mantels with stone surrounds, panelling, heavy mouldings,
plaster cornices, and the exposed panelled beams of the entrance and stair
halls' ceilings. The most spatially exciting room is the eastern section of
the attic where  the framing of the main roof and of the corner tower is exposed.
The western section of the attic has been divided into small rooms,

8. Significance

residences who earlier had been employed in the construction of the State, War
and Navy Building (now the Executive Office Building).

City Directories between 1894 and 1903 list the house's occupants as W.C.
Whittemore and/or Walter Dwight Wilcox, Mrs. Whittemore's son., Wilcox (1869-
1949) was a noted photographer who between 1898 and 1909 wrote a number of
travel books on Canada and in 1924 a book on Cuba. He moved to Washington from
Chicago in 1891 while a student at Yale. After graduation from Yale in 1893 he
went on scientific explorations in Canada, Cuba, and Hawaii. He operated a
mahogany and cedar plantation in Cuba and in 1918-19 was a representative of
the War Trade Board in Cuba.

On December 9, 1896, Aline Wilcox, Mrs. Whittemore's daughter, married
Albert Halsted in the parlor at 1526 New Hampshire Avenue. The Washington
Evening Star gave an extensive description of this wedding in the '"spacious and
artistic home."

(Continued on Form 10-300a, page 3)
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8. Significance (continued)

The house has been the site for other social.events. In 1906-07 Theodore
P. Shonts, a wealthy railroad magnate, rented the house during the year his two
daughters made their debuts. While John C. Weeks lived in the house his
daughter, Katherine Sinclair Weeks, made her debut.

Weeks (1860-1926), who rented the house from 1907-1911, was one of its
better known tenants. While living there hewas a Congressional representative
from Massachusetts. From 1913 to 1919 he was a Senator and from 1921 to 1925
he was Secretary of War under Harding and Coolidge.

In 1903 Senator John F. Dryden (1839-1911) of New Jersey rented the house.
Dryden, one of the founders of Prudential Insurance Company in America and of
Fidelity Trust Company, was a Senator from 1902 to 1907 when he returned to
business.

On December 27, 1907, Mrs, Whittemore died and left 1526 New Hampshire Ave-
nue to her son and daughter. After 1911 Wilcox and his family lived in the
house. In 1912 his sister deeded him her share of the property. The Wilcoxes
who lived there until 1926 are said to have entertained lavishly.

In 1926 the house was vacant. Wilcox sold it to T. W. Phillips, Jr., Inc.
who sold it to Loren B.T. Johnson. Johnson in 1927 sold the house to the
Woman's National Democratic Club.

The Woman's National Democratic Club was incorporated in 1922, 1Its By-Laws
state that its purposes and objectives are '"the education of its members in
political science, economics, and the arts, the study of the processes of demo-
cracy and procedures of government and the rendering of educational and social
services to the community.'" The club opened in 1924 in rented quarters at 820
Connecticut Avenue but quickly realized the need for additional space and
brought 1526 New Hampshire Avenue. On May 10, 1927, Mrs. Woodrow Wilson and
Mrs. John W, Davis dedicated the club building. From July 1, 1943, to February
15, 1946, the building was leased to the British Service Club although re-
served at certain times for the Woman's National Democratic Club. In 1966-67 a
two-story wing was added at the west to enlarge the dining room where the club'’s
twice weekly luncheons with political speakers are held. This wing designed by
Nicholas Satterlee of Washington was dedicated by Mrs. Lyndon B. Johnson in
1967.
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